
 

 
11 February 2013 Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday, 11 February 2013, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and 
operations of the City. 
 



 

 
11 February 2013 Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
V.  ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 23 January Strategic Planning Retreat [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 28 January Short Regular Meeting  
c)  28 January Work Session 

 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign-up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-05, Ratifying and Approving an Application 
to the North Carolina Governor’s Crime Commission in the Amount of $54,092.40 for NC 
Governor’s Crime Commission Initiative Phase III; and 2) Resolution 13-08, Ratifying and 
Approving an Application to the North Carolina Governor’s Crime Commission in the 
Amount of $45,000.00 to Purchase Eight (8) New Mobile Data Terminal/In Car Camera 
Systems.  (CAF 13-07)  [See Notebook Tab 2]  

 
 Resolution 13-05 
 Resolution 13-08 

   
 b)  Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month 

of December 2012.  (CAF 13-13)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in 
form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your 
name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are 
provided below.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern 
to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three 
minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public 
hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, 
be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be 
directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  



 

 
11 February 2013 Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
X. WORK SESSION 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-16, Authorizing a Contract with McGill 

Associates to Perform Work Associated with Grant/Loan Applications and Engineering 
Work for Water and Sewer Projects as Noted in the Executive Summary.   (CAF 13-21)  [See 
Notebook Tab 4] 

 
 Resolution 13-16 

 
 b) Consideration of CM 13-11, Lamb and Main Street Demolition Project.  [See Notebook Tab 

5] 
 

 c) Consideration of CM 13-10, Retreat Discussion Points Continued [See Notebook Tab 6] 
    i. Use of Fund Balance to Balance the Budget 
    ii. Economic Development 
    
XI. REPORTS 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Update [See Notebook Tab 7] 
ii. Various Departmental Reports 

a) Henderson Fire Department 
b) Henderson-Vance County 911 

 
XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(6) regarding a Personnel Matter 
b) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege 

 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

                                                                                                                                                                         
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public 
comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 1 of 9 
 

  

HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL  - DRAFT 
ANNUAL STRATEGIC PLANNING RETREAT  

Aycock Recreation Center 
23 January 2013 

 
 
PRESENT:  Mayor James D. O’Geary, Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Vernon L. Brown and George M. Daye. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, City 
Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, Finance Director Katherine Brafford, Planning Director Erris 
Dunston, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams, Fire Chief Danny Wilkerson, Police Chief 
Keith Sidwell, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain, Kerr Lake Regional 
Water Plant Manager Christy Lipscomb, Engineering Director Peter Sokalski, Parks & 
Recreation Director Alan Gill and Human Resources Manager Cathy Brown. 
 
FACILITATOR: Becky Veazey of The Maps Group, Cary, NC 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
The Retreat was called to order at 8:20 a.m. by Mayor O’Geary. 
 
INVOCATION: 
 
Mayor O’Geary requested Council Member Peace-Jenkins to lead everyone in prayer. 
 
OPENING REMARKS: 
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone to this Retreat.  He expressed pleasure with the 
accomplishments of the past year, and said he’s looking forward to the outcome of this meeting.   
Mayor O’Geary then turned the meeting over to Facilitator Veazey.   
 
GETTING STARTED by Becky Veazey 
 
Ms. Veazey began the meeting by reviewing the ground rules. There were no changes and all 
attendees agreed with ground rules. 
 
Ms. Veazey then led the group in several brief icebreakers which allowed everyone to learn a 
little more about each other. 
 
REVIEW AND AGREE ON RETREAT AGENDA: 
 
Ms. Veazey asked if there were any adjustments to the agenda. There were no changes 
suggested.  
 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 2 of 9 
 

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
Next Ms. Veazey asked the group to read the Roles and Responsibilities of the Mayor, Council 
and City Manager and to make suggestions for changes.  Three changes were suggested and 
agreed upon by Council: 
 

Section III  - City Council’s and Mayor’s Needs and Expectations of City Manager 
 

1. Add a new Item “n”-  Let Council/Mayor know when City Manager sees potential 
problems in their actions or direction. 

 
Section IV  - City Manager’s Needs and Expectations of Mayor a & City Council 

 
1. Add to Item “b” - Be willing to discuss “undiscussable” issues. 
 
2. Add a new Item “i” - Help City Manager and staff establish and maintain 

competitive compensation for employees. 
 
These changes will be brought to Council for formal approval. 
 
There were several comments and questions that were discussed during this time.  Council 
Member Kearney asked if there were issues other than legal that were not available for Council 
to know about.  City Manager Griffin said all issues of importance are shared.  He added that 
often the City Attorney would brief Council on matters involving personnel and litigation issues 
during Closed Sessions.  Council Member Peace-Jenkins expressed appreciation for item IIIe 
where the City Manager helped her through a recent event. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
Ms. Veazey then directed attendees to the Hands-On Discussion Items.  She said Council’s tops 
responses to the questionnaire narrowing down groups discussion were:  1) Economic 
Development, Downtown & EDC, getting/helping businesses come to the city, more jobs and 
revenue growth; 2) 5 Year CIP for each department and fleet replacement needs; 3) Plan/Strategy 
for Flint Hill; 4) One-Stop permitting (City & County); 5) Balancing budget without using 
general fund balance and 6) Recycling costs, advantages, etc. Ms. Veazey asked if anyone 
wanted to make any changes.   
 
City Manager Griffin said he felt recycling could be discussed with the 5 Year CIP and 
suggested Pay Study/Compensation be added as item 6 as this is a major concern of staff.  There 
were no objections. 
 
Ms. Veazey then divided staff and Council into three groups with each group given 20 minutes 
to discuss each of the first three discussion items.  She provided the groups with a Problem 
Solving Model (attached) and after reviewing the process let the groups begin their discussions.   
She then brought the groups together and asked for their solutions.  Below is a summary of their 
solutions. 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 3 of 9 
 

Issue Group A Group B Group C 
Economic 
Development, etc. 

●Business friendly environment 
●Permit process improvements 
●City and EDC working together 
●City Brand and marketing positive 
side of city – promote city                     
●Providing help to existing 
businesses 
●Outreach to businesses 
●Council field  trip to like 
municipalities for feedback 
●Improve appearance of major 
corridors 

●Incentive plan/grants 
●Façade grants 
●Infrastructure in place and upgrades 
●Fee waivers for new businesses 
●Change old habits 
●County/city collaboration 
●Set short-term goals 
●Task oriented 
●Decide on SNB building 
 

●Job creation 
●Infrastructure 
●Comprehensive/focused development 
along NC 39, N. Garnett St, Raleigh Rd. 
●Town hall meetings (citizen involvement 
– collaborate w/ churches 
●Improve livability of city (social skills, 
job skills, etc.) 
●Get people to move back into City 
●Expansion of City 

5 Year General Fund 
CIP 

●Annexation 
●Privatization vs. in-house 
●Investigate cost - benefit for 
recycling 
●Look for grants for purchasing bins    

●Using dollars released from debt 
service  
●Pay for vehicles/equip w/cash to 
avoid interest charges  
●Use debt capacity for larger projects 
●Create policy/guide for CIP and 
recycling 
●Recycling: look at other 
communities 
●need recycling policy 
●Raise garbage fee for more demo. 
  
 

●Increase property  tax 
●Increase outside rates to encourage 
movement into City 
●Consider raising utility rates outside City 
to provide incentive for voluntary 
annexation 

   



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Issue Group A Group B Group C 
Flint Hill Plan ●Partnerships  for recreation facilities 

●Infrastructure grants 
●Reentry program 
●Plan B for REEF project 
●Look at recreation 
●Restart Farmers Market 
●Plan C for REEF being alternate use 
of grant dollars & credit worthy 
mechanism to generate income 
●Golden Leaf dollar options 
●Have back up plan for dollars 
 

●Await Grant Award 
●Citizen input 
●Neighborhood steering committee 
●City wide committee 
●Define redevelopment areas 
●Small area plan 
●Tear down dilapidated buildings 

●Lacks infrastructure 
●Grants 
●Collaboration between State/City and 
County 
●Faith based assistance from community 
●Comprehensive plan with time frame for 
change 
●Citizen input/hands-on help 
●Pursue funding (i.e., CDBG, etc.) 

 
  



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Economic Development – Council Member Inscoe suggested the Main Street Manager 
spearheading a plan for downtown with input from the City and it was also suggested a letter be 
sent to the County regarding the Solar Farm issue the County is currently reviewing.  To 
encourage economic growth, ideas such as waiving fees for new businesses, and developing 
infrastructure were mentioned.  There was also discussion regarding one-stop permitting, 
annexation and how to promote the positives of Henderson. Town hall meetings were also 
discussed as a mechanism for not only learning citizen needs but also to help citizens develop 
skills for a viable livable city. 
 
5 Year General Fund CIP - Council Member Kearney asked about the debt service and if long 
term debt could be moved to short term debt as debt is retired.  City Manager Griffin felt it 
would be best to turn part of the retired debt funds into cash for smaller purchases such as 
vehicles rather than to continue to add to existing debt and suggested 50% cash as a goal.  Police 
Chief Sidwell added that his vehicles have been purchased with asset forfeiture funds and said 
funds received from the sale of those vehicles needs to be returned to asset forfeiture;  therefore, 
the vehicles that staff have obtained in the past from the police department will not be an option. 
 
It was agreed by all that a plan needs to be determined for recycling and other communities 
should be contacted for input, along with review of current statistics. 
 
As far as annexation, Mr. Griffin reminded attendees that the State has made involuntary 
annexation practically impossible but suggested a coordinated plan to determine possible target 
areas. 
 
Flint Hill – Council Member Kearney felt grant dollars would not be sufficient for sustaining the 
REEF project and said some credit worthy entity would need to become involved.  Council 
Member Rainey stressed all projects need to be made public in a positive manner so citizens 
know the concerns and positive movement by the City, which was echoed by Mr. Kearney 
 
LUNCH 
 
Ms. Veazey asked if anyone had anything else they wanted to add.  There was no further 
discussion so the group broke for a 30 minute lunch. 
 
(Clerk’s note:  During the lunch break the Boards and Commissions Committee held a brief 
meeting during which they voted to appointment two individuals to two different commissions, 
and  Council Member Rainey left the meeting during the lunch break.) 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 6 of 9 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS (Con’t): 
 
After lunch, the groups reformed and discussed the last three hands-on items and a summary of their solutions is found below: 
 

Issue Group A Group B Group C 
One-Step 
Permitting 

●Customize check list with contact 
information 
●Liaison (go to person) 
●Include County check list with 
packet and vice versa 

●Redesign process for City control 
●Upfront discussion 
●Form PIT to include planning, zoning. 
code, fire and utilities (sewer/customer 
service) 
●Ad hoc committee of Council/staff to 
work with Commissioners/staff 

●City/County need to work together 
●Clear Process 
●TRC needs to expand to both County and 
City 
●Express permits with fees 
●Resources 
● One person coordinator 
● Policy changes at Council/Commission 
level 
●Get pointers from other municipalities 
● Customized check list

Balancing Budget ●Tax increase 
●Utility rate increase 
●Cut services 
●Impact fees 
●Compare County fees to City fees 
●Hopeful continued revenue from 
Internet cafés 
 

●City Manager prepare budget without 
using fund balance 
●Create policy for financial stability 
●Create Council policy regarding fund 
balance 
●Determine direction 
● Consider limited time small groups 
tasked with specific topics 
●Bring specific issues to work sessions 
for problem-solving  

●Property tax 
●Raise sanitation fee 
●Review fee schedule for possible increases 
●Food service tax 
● Use funds “freed up” once debt is paid  

Pay Classification ●Fair market value 
●Double edged sword as once 
classification if complete, Council 
needs to act on findings 
●Partner with local university to do 
study 

●Analyzes work tasks, job descriptions, 
ADA compliant 
●Competitive range 
●Need updated job descriptions for legal 
compliance 

●Need back up info. 
●Keep good quality staff 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 
One-Step Permitting – Council Member Kearney suggested an ad hoc person to work with both 
the County and City on permitting issues.  Planning and Community Development Director Erris 
Dunston was asked if the current permit check list is automated to which she responded yes. 
 
Balancing Budget - City Manager Griffin drew attention to the General Fund Balance summary 
that Finance Director Kathy Brafford compiled for the past few years and shared the Local 
Government Commission requires municipalizes to retain 8% of the budget in the general fund 
balance.  He reminded Council that they have set a goal of 30% in the fund balance.  Council 
Member Inscoe said the City cannot continue to withdraw from the general fund calling it the 
“savings account” because eventually it will go dry. Fire Chief Wilkerson said no one likes to 
hear of taxes going up but he said the City might even have to look at establishing a fire 
inspection fee.  Everyone was also reminded that the sewer rates will continue to increase due to 
the sewer plant upgrade. 
 
Pay Classification – A classification study has not been done since 1992.  Council Member 
Daye felt it is important to keep valuable employees.  Chief Sidwell suggested using local 
universities/community colleges for the study to reduce costs.  City Manager Griffin said a full 
blown study would also include interview with staff along with comparisons of like sized 
municipalities.  Council Member Daeke asked how Mr. Griffin has seen implementation of a 
study in the past.  Mr. Griffin said it is suggested that you implement the staff first and then 
exempt employees.  From experience he has seen a plan fully implemented within a year and he 
has also seen a plan partially implemented in the first year and never completed. 
 
Following a brief break, Ms. Veasey asked if there were any other comments regarding the top 
six discussion items.  There were no further comments.  She then asked City Manager Griffin to 
review the Strategic Plan. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Mr. Griffin said the Summary Report format used during the August Mid-Year Retreat was well 
received so he continued the format for this meeting.  He said he was very pleased that for the 
first time in several years that crime was not a major concern.  He then reviewed all the action 
plans under KSOs 1-8, pointing out specially the items in “Red”  which indicate they have not 
been accomplished in a timely fashion. (see attached  Summary Report) 
 
It was agreed that AP4-2 (Redevelopment of residential/commercial) should be discussed at a 
separate work session. 
 
It was also agreed that AP 8-2 now falls under the new CIP General Fund. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked what efforts have been made to provide inner city youth with 
access to the Aycock Recreation Center.  Recreation and Parks Director Alan Gill shared his 
staff has worked with churches, schools and organizations such as the Boys and Girls Clubs to 
offer services at no charge.  He said they are currently working with approximately 25 such 
groups and that these groups provide transportation for the youth. 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Council Member Inscoe asked Police Chief Sidwell to elaborate on the decrease in crime.  Chief 
Sidwell said there has been a 30% decrease in larcenies, however, violent crime has spiked.  He 
also said homicides have increased.  He attributed the overall decrease to successful partnerships 
with citizens and businesses.  He sees things turning from apathy to involvement by property 
owners and citizens and added he felt his personnel also contributed to the decrease.  Council 
Member Kearney asked about gang activity.  Chief Sidwell said he sees a decrease in “home-
grown” gangs/organizations and said working closely with the ATF has led to several 
indictments over the past months with more to come.  Although he is encouraged, he reminded 
everyone that there are always gangs waiting to replace the ones that are destroyed, but he said 
his team continues to be creative. 
 
There was no further discussion.   
 
The City Manager then verified that action steps will be formalized from the group reports for 
approval during the February Work Session.  
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Brown left the meeting prior to the critique) 
 
RETREAT CRITIQUE AND WRAP UP 
 
Ms. Veasey then asked for a critique of the Retreat. 
 
At this time two citizens asked to address Council.  Mayor O’Geary polled the Council and they 
were all in agreement to all the citizens to speak.   
 
Mr. Nicholson and Mr. Utz both expressed concerns about the crime in their residential area 
which is in the ETJ on St. Matthew Street.  They said they fear for the safety of the residents in 
the area and asked who they needed to talk with about the issue.  City Manager Griffin explained 
they should talk to the County as the City only provides police and code compliance service to 
city residents.  After a brief discussion, Mr. Griffin offered to meet with the County, and the City 
Planning Director, Erris Dunston, along with these two gentlemen regarding their concerns.  
Council Member Coffey suggested they meet with the Sheriff and also offered a suggestion that 
the County might be able to remove some of the empty, dilapidated structures with a controlled 
burn.  Both gentlemen thanked Council for their attention. 
 
Ms. Veasey again asked for critique comments and received the following input: 
 
Well Done: 
 Small group work – better discussion 
 Liked deciding in advance the discussion items and staying on topic 
 Good participation by everyone 
 Good advanced materials 
 Good food 
Do Differently 
 Make room warmer 
 Hold in a different location 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
23 January 2013 Annual Strategic Planning Retreat 

Page 9 of 9 
 

Before adjourning, City Manager Griffin asked for Council’s pleasure regarding a mid-year 
retreat.  In a four to two vote with Council Members Daeke, Coffey, Daye and Peace-Jenkins 
voting to hold a mid-year retreat in August.  Council Members Inscoe and Kearney voted against 
and Council Members Rainey and Brown had left the meeting.   The City Clerk will confirm a 
date with Ms. Veasey.     
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was ready to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
It was the consensus of Council to adjourn at 3:20 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 14 January 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 6 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Short Regular Meeting 

28 January 2013 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon 
L. Brown, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford, and Engineering 
Director Peter Sokalski. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 28 January 2013 Short Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order 
by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
Mayor O’Geary welcomed everyone and said he was glad there were no injuries from the ice 
storm on Friday. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 14 January 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 6 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  No requests were made to 
adjust the Agenda.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council.  Council Member Daeke 
moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins 
and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Coffey moved the approval of the 14 January 2013 minutes as presented.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Inscoe and unanimously approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Receiving the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for FY Ending 30 June 2012.  
(Reference:  CAF 13-02; Resolution 13-02) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Mr. Curtis Averette, Certified Public Accountant with William L. 
Stark and Company to provide highlights of their report.  After thanking Finance Director Kathy 
Brafford and City Manager Griffin for their patience and assistance with compiling the audit, Mr. 
Averette said overall it was a good (unqualified) audit.  He then reviewed the figures and 
findings and pointed out areas such as the reclassification of the library from the land line item to 
inclusion into the general fixed assets.  He also mentioned areas that have been improved from 
last year. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked questions about the Fund Balance, ratio of equity to liability and 
debt service for the sewer project.  Mr. Averette explained the sewer debt service will go into the 
2013 audit and explained in more detail the Fund Balance figures. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked when the contract with Vance County was executed and City 
Manager Griffin said it was in the spring of 2012 and was only for the tap.  He explained when 
the contract is executed for water it will be included in the proper audit year. 
 
Mr. Averette did point out an area that needs monitoring and Mr. Griffin said a process has been 
set in place regarding this issue which involves uncollectable water bills.  Mr. Averette said part 
of the problem may have occurred when the City switched computer software systems; however, 
it looks like water bills have been inappropriately categorized as uncollectable.  Mr. Griffin said 
audits are meant to point out issues such as this and he values the auditors for pointing out the 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 14 January 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 6 

problem.  Mr. Griffin also said Council’s decision to cut the billing cycle from 60 days to 30 
days was a step in the right direction and suggested Council might like to look again at the 
security deposit requirements  during the budget process. 
 
Council Member Coffey expressed concern that this problem has existed so long, since 2006, 
without anyone being aware of the situation and Council Member Kearney saw the problem as 
an accumulation over the years. 
 
There was no further discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of Resolution 13-02, Receiving the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for FY Ending 30 June 2012.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, 
Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 3, p. 105) 
 
Amending Fund 73: Economic Development Capital Reserve Fund and Authorizing 
Appointments to the Henderson Vance Economic Development Commission and the 
Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission.  (Reference: CAF 13-15; Resolution 13-11) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked the City Clerk to summarize these appointments. Ms. McCrackin 
shared this committee met briefly during the Strategic Planning Retreat and due to time 
constraints only reviewed two applications for open positions.  The Boards and Commissions 
Committee recommend both Mr. Robert Herford, for the Henderson Vance Economic 
Development Commission, and Ms. Hilda Delbridge, for the Henderson Recreation and Parks 
Commission for three year appointments.  
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary then asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 13-02, Amending Fund 73: Economic 
Development Capital Reserve Fund and Authorizing Appointments to the Henderson Vance 
Economic Development Commission and the Henderson Recreation and Parks Commission.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney.  NO: None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 3, p. 123) 
 
Agreement Setting Forth Mayor, City Council and City Manager Roles, Responsibilities 
and Expectations.  (Reference: CAF 13-16; Resolution 13-12) 
 
The City Manager said as done previously, changes suggested during the Strategic Retreat have 
been incorporated into the existing roles, responsibilities and expectations and action tonight 
amends the existing agreement. 
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 14 January 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 6 

 
Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 13-12, Agreement Setting Forth 
Mayor, City Council and City Manager Roles, Responsibilities and Expectations.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, 
Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney and Coffey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 3, p. 125) 
 
Authorizing the Execution of the Memorandum of Agreement Between the North Carolina 
Sediment Control Commission and Local Government.  (Reference: CAF 13-17; Resolution 
13-13) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Peter Sokalski to provide a brief Council on 
this matter.  Ms. Sokalski said this is a memorandum issued by the Local Government 
Commission to all local governments clarifying the roles and responsibilities of each entity in 
enforcing the Sedimentation Pollution Control Act of 1973, the NC General Statutes Chapter 
113A, Article 4 andany rules adopted pursuant to the Sedimentation Pollution Control Act 
(SPCA).  Because the City already has an approved sediment control ordinance (City Code 
Chapter 23-A), this memorandum is required to be signed. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure as there was no discussion. 
 
Council Member Daeke moved the approval of Resolution 13-13, Authorizing the Execution of 
the Memorandum of Agreement Between the North Carolina Sediment Control Commission and 
Local Government.  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.  
NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 3, p. 127) 
 
Opposing Legislation that Provides for the Forced Taking of Municipal Water Systems.  
(Reference: CAF 13-18; Resolution 13-14) 
 
City Manager Griffin explained this was an item of discussion brought before the 2012 Session 
of the North Carolina General Assembly by the Legislative Research Commission that would 
force the City of Asheville to transfer its municipal water system to a Metropolitan Sewer 
District.  Since this will be introduced at the beginning of the 2013 General Assembly, Mr. 
Griffin felt the City should show support for Asheville.  Concern by City Administration, along 
with other municipalities is that forced taking of infrastructure would have a negative effect on 
any local government investing in needed infrastructure in the future, thus endangering business 
opportunities and economic stability within the State. 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure as there was no discussion. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 14 January 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 6 

Council Member Inscoe moved the approval of Resolution 13-14, Opposing Legislation that 
Provides for the Forced Taking of Municipal Water Systems.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, 
Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  
(See Resolution Book 3, p. 129) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen wished to address City Council.  
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem  
Mayor Pro-Tem Rainey said he felt the Strategic Planning Retreat went well and 
Mayor O’Geary expressed his gratitude to Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier 
for a superb job keeping the streets clean following the ice storm. 
 

b) Ward 3 Listening Post Report 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins gave a brief summary saying there was a good 
citizen turnout.  The purpose was to discuss a possible Plan B for the REEF 
project with an interested developer, RED, Inc.  She said citizens gave good input. 
 
Council Member Daeke echoed Ms. Peace-Jenkins comments and said it was 
good to have Mr. Jason Stewardson from the DDC present to provide background 
information.  He said most of the concerns from citizens revolved around jobs, 
job training, children, nutrition and re-entry programs for felons.  Mr. Daeke also 
said he will be contacting individuals who expressed interest in serving on the 
committees 

 
c) City Manager (No Report) 

Surplus Property- Mr. Griffin advised Council that a sludge shoot, which has not 
been used in years, has been listed as surplus and will be auctioned on GovDeal. 
Urban Progress Zone – Mr. Griffin shared the City received an Urban Progress 
Zone Tax Credit Designation on 24 January 2013.  He thanked Planning and 
Community Redevelopment Director Erris Dunston and ECD Director Stuart Litvin 
for their work on this project. 
Severe Weather Policy – As a follow up to a call Mr. Griffin received from a 
Council Member, he distributed the existing policy (Administrative Policy Sec. 
13.02).  Several Council Members said staff was uncomfortable asking permission 
from their supervisor to leave early during the ice storm.  Council Member Peace-
Jenkins felt the policy should be tweaked.  Council Member Rainey expressed 
concern that staff would call Council and not speak with Mr. Griffin or Human 
Resources Director Kathy Brown.  Mr. Griffin asked if more details could be 
provided for a resolution regarding possible conflicts between staff and supervisors. 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

 14 January 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 6 

NCLM’s Annual Advocacy Goals Conference – Mr. Griffin attended this 
conference last week and he provided a copy of the 2013-14 Legislative Biennium 
goals and shared a copy of how he voted as part of the League’s request to narrow 
the items for consideration. 

 
d) City Attorney (No Report) 
e) City Clerk  

Ms. McCrackin reminded Council of the Chamber Banquet this Thursday; the 
Annual Awards Banquet February 21 and thanked Council for allowing her to attend 
the Clerks Academy this Wednesday through Friday. 

 
Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was ready to adjourn and move into Work Session 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 

 



 

Minute Book 42 
28 January 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 1 of 4 
 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Work Session 

28 January 2013  

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry Daeke, Vernon L. 
Brown, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, 
and Engineering Director Peter Sokalski. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 28 January 2013 Work Session of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 7:15 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  There were no changes and 
it was the consensus of Council to approve the Agenda as presented 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
28 January 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 2 of 4 
 

WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 
Residential Meter Replacement Program.  (Reference:  CM 13-04) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to summarize this program. 
Mr. Frazier said the City was approved for a low interest loan from the NC Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund in August 2012.  The $294,000 will be used to purchase approximately 1,000 
new residential radio read water meters and he went on to explain the first phase of the project 
will target residential subdivisions outside the city, and meters along US 158 Bypass to Oxford 
Booster Pump Station.  Other target areas include Satterwhite Point Road, Jacksontown Road 
and Jackson Royster Road to the Warren County meter vault.  Mr. Frazier explained these are 
older meters which typically read slower.  He also said the installation of new meters should 
increase reading efficiency and reduce fuel costs as there will be minimal stopping and starting 
of the vehicles. 
 
Council Member Rainey inquired what it costs to replace a meter.  Mr. Frazier said if there is an 
active problem, there is no cost.  For a new account without an existing meter the cost is 
$300.00. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked at what point information would be available to analyze personnel 
efficiency with the new meters.  He said he was not expecting to eliminate personnel but perhaps 
a vehicle.  Mr. Frazier felt sometime during the year information could be provided and Mr. 
Griffin reminded Council that in the 3-4 years since beginning the process of transitioning to 
radio read meters, the City has been able to reduce one position to part time in two departments. 
Council Member Inscoe then suggested the City look info purchasing an electric powered 
vehicle.  
 
Council Member Daeke asked when the replacements would begin.  Mr. Frazier said as soon as 
the meters are purchased. 
 
Kerr Lake Water Elevation. (Reference:  CM 13-05) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frazier to update Council on the Lake 
levels.  Mr. Frazier said  it is good news since the Lake has risen to 301.15’ as of today, which is 
a significant improvement from 10 December 2012 when voluntary conservations measures were 
put in place with the Lake level at 292.35’.  He said if the current level remains stable for the 
next few weeks, a resolution will be brought back to Council to lift the voluntary measure.   
 
Council Member Daeke asked what notices were issued during the voluntary measure.  Mr. 
Frazier said it was posted on the Web and at City Hall but there were no restrictions such as 
limiting water at restaurants under a voluntary measure.  He went on say everyone should be 
good stewards and practice conservation at all times. 



 

Minute Book 42 
28 January 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Downtown Progress Energy Pole Replacements. (Reference:  CM 13-06) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Peter Sokalski to provide an update on this 
replacement project. Mr. Sokalski explained discussions have been ongoing since August 2012 
between the City and Progress Energy regarding a plan to replace existing poles and wiring in 
the downtown area of Henderson from Spring Street to Andrews Avenue.  The existing poles 
were put in place sometime in the 1950’s or 1960’s and are in need of replacement.  (Clerk’s 
Note:  The City Attorney said after the meeting that he thought these poles were installed in the 
1930’s)  The current plan is for Progress Energy to remove 65 poles and replace them with 62 
teardrop poles.  The cost of the new poles will be at Progress Energy’s expense and should last 
for approximately 75 years.  The new poles will be taller which may be an issue for second floor 
tenants.  Other details to be determined are issues such as the cost of cutting sidewalks, removal 
of concrete, installing new signage, and determining placement of meters for electrical use 
during downtown events.  Mr. Sokalski said Progress Energy anticipates 12-16 weeks for 
delivery of the poles with a starting date in March and conclusion of the project approximately 6-
8 months later.  The total cost to the City for items such as removal of concrete and new street 
signs is now estimated at $32,500 which is higher than what was discussed in August. Mr. 
Sokalski said he would be able to provide a more accurate estimate once a pole is removed 
which will reveal whether the pole is set in concrete or just buried. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the poles will have Cobra heads or Teardrop heads and whether 
they will have Metal Halide or Sodium Vapor lights.  Mr. Sokalski said Teardrop poles have 
been selected and the lights will be Sodium Vapor.  City Manager Griffin said Teardrop lights 
were chosen as they provide a more historic appearance consistent with the downtown area of 
Henderson.  Mr. Inscoe asked if this could be funded with the Powell Bill.  It is believed the 
Powell Bill can be used for sidewalk repair.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked about the installation as Progress Energy listed it on their 
brochure as no cost.  Mr. Sokalski explained the poles are provided by Progress Energy at no 
cost to the City. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked what happens to the old poles and learned that they have to be 
properly disposed of as they contain lead. 
 
Council Member Kearney expressed concern regarding the change in meter locations and how it 
might affect Tourism events.  Council Member Daeke wondered if Tourism might be willing to 
contribute to the cost of placing the meters and Assistant City Manager Frazier said he plans to 
contact the Tourism office to discuss this matter. 
 
It was the consensus of Council to carry this project forward. 
 
With no further comments, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was ready to adjourn. 
 



 

Minute Book 42 
28 January 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 4 of 4 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Kearney and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 1 of 19 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

29 January 2013 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-07 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-05, Ratifying and Approving An 
Application to the North Carolina Governor’s Crime Commission in the Amount of 
$54,092.40 for NC Governor’s Crime Commission Initiative Phase III; and, 2) 
Resolution 13-08 Ratifying and Approving An Application to the North Carolina 
Governor’s Crime Commission in the Amount of $45,000 to Purchase Eight (8) New 
Mobile Data Terminal/In Car Camera Systems.  
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 2: To Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and  
 KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 

Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities. 

 
Recommendation:             
 

Approval of:  
 Resolution 13-05, Ratifying and Approving An Application to the North Carolina Governor’s 

Crime Commission in the Amount of $54,092.40 for NC Governor’s Crime Commission 
Initiative Phase III; and, 

 Resolution 13-08 Ratifying and Approving An Application to the North Carolina Governor’s 
Crime Commission in the Amount of $45,000 to Purchase Eight (8) New Mobile Data 
Terminal/In Car Camera Systems. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Given time constraints vis-à-vis grant application deadlines and Council meeting dates, I 
authorized Chief Sidwell to apply for the aforementioned grants.  The first application is to the 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: ______________________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Feb 13 Regular Meeting 
 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 2 of 19 
 

NC Governor’s Crime Commission Program to provide overtime for sworn officers and updated 
surveillance equipment for the use by the Henderson Police Department.  This grant will provide 
a reimbursement to the City of 75% of the cost of the requested overtime and equipment, with 
the department’s portion being a 25% cash grant match, provided through Federal Asset 
Forfeiture Funds.  
 
This grant is an effort to obtain grant monies that would fund overtime for police officers and 
purchase equipment and materials to allow the Police Department to expand our existing 
partnerships with citizen groups, government agencies and private businesses to reduce Part 1 
UCR Crimes, particularly Aggravated Assaults and crimes involving weapons within the City of 
Henderson and to reduce gang-related crimes.  Total amount requested is $54,092.40 and the 
Grant Match Funding would be $18,030.80. 
 
The second application is to the NC Governor’s Crime Commission Program to provide funds 
for the purchase of updated Mobile Data Terminal Computer/In-Car Camera Systems for the use 
of the Henderson Police Department. This grant will pay for 75% of the cost to purchase eight 
(8) new Mobile Data Terminal/In-Car Camera systems to be installed in marked police patrol 
vehicles. Total amount requested is $45,000.00 and the Grant Match Funding would be $15,000 
also provided through Asset Forfeiture Funds. 
 
Both Grant applications were due for electronic submission to the NC Governor’s Crime 
Commission on 31 January 2013. The anticipated notification date if the grant is approved is 1 
July 2013. The grant terms would be the same as the City’s Budget Year for 2013-2014: July 1, 
2013 to June 30, 2014.  
 
Ratification of these submissions is requested.  This action does not bind the Council to accept 
the grants.  Should funding be awarded for one or both grants, a Resolution accepting the grants 
and Budget Ordinances establishing the grant projects will be brought to Council for 
consideration and approval.   
 
Enclosures:  
 

1. Resolution 13-05 
2. Resolution 13-08 

  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 3 of 19 
 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-05 
 

A RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING AN APPLICATION TO THE 
NORTH CAROLINA GOVENOR’S CRIME COMMISSION FOR NC GOVERNOR’S 

CRIME COMMISSION INITIATIVE PHASE III 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2013 
Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 2: To 

Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for 
Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers 
and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department has partnered with the NC Governor’s Crime Commission 

in the past and has successfully applied for and received grant funding for overtime; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application deadline for said grant was 31 January 2013, in order to be eligible to 

compete for funding the application had to be submitted and said submission was approved by the 
City Manager; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grant for which the Police Department is applying would provide $54,092.40 in funding 

with a local match of $18,030.80; and 
 
WHEREAS, ratification of the application for said grant, being more fully articulated in Attachment A to 

this Resolution is appropriate at this time. Should funding be awarded, Council will be requested 
to accept the grant. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY RATIFY AND APPROVE  the application for the NC Governor’s Crime Commission 
Community Revitalization Initiative Phase III Grant in the amount of $54,092.40. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-08, introduced by Council Member _____________and seconded by 
Council Member __________on this the ___ day of _____ 2013 and having been  
Submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .  NO:  . 
        

________________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk  
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference Minute Book 42, pg. *** 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 4 of 19 
 

 

 

Attachment A 
Resolution 13-05 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 5 of 19 
 

 

 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 6 of 19 
 

 

 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 7 of 19 
 

 

 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 8 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 9 of 19 
 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 10 of 19 
 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-08 
 

A RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING AN APPLICATION TO THE 
NORTH CAROLINA GOVENOR’S CRIME COMMISSION IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $45,000 TO PURCHASE EIGHT (8) NEW MOBILE DATEA TERMINAL/IN 

CAR CAMERA SYSTEMS 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2013Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 2: To 

Reduce Crime and Provide for a Safe Community, and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for 
Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers 
and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson Police Department seeks to make improvements to the departments available 

equipment to conduct enforcement activities more effectively and safely; and 
 
WHEREAS, the grant for which the Police Department is applying would provide $45,000 in funding 

with a local match of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application deadline for said grant was 31 January 2013 and in order to be eligible to 

compete for funding the application had to be submitted and said submission was approved by the 
City Manager; and 

 
WHEREAS, ratification of the application for said grant, being more fully articulated in Attachment A to 

this Resolution is appropriate at this time. Should funding be awarded, the Council will be 
requested to accept the grant. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY RATIFY AND APPROVE  the application for the NC Governor’s Crime Commission 
Grant in the amount of $45,000. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-08, introduced by Council Member _____________and seconded by 
Council Member __________on this the ___ day of _____ 2013 and having been  
Submitted to a roll call vote, was approved by the following votes: YES:  .  NO:  .  ABSTAIN:  .  NO:  . 
        

________________________________ 
 James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk  
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_____________________________________ 
 
Reference Minute Book 42, pg. *** 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 11 of 19 
 

 
  

Attachment A 
Resolution 13-08 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 12 of 19 
 



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 13 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 14 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 15 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 16 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 17 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 18 of 19 
 

 
  



 
CAF:  13-07: 11 February 2013 Council Meeting 

Page 19 of 19 
 

 



CAF 13-13:  December 2012 Tax Releases & Refunds: January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

28 January 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF 13-13 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Month of December 2012  

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the month of December 2012. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the month December 2012.  These releases and refunds are found to be in order 
and are being recommended for approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 Feb 13 Regular Meeting 
 



CAF 13-13:  December 2012 Tax Releases & Refunds: January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 

Dec 2012 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2000 16.80$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2001 16.80$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2002 18.30$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2003 18.30$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2004 19.20$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2004 16.00$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2005 16.75$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2005 20.10$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2006 16.75$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2006 20.10$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2007 16.75$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2007 20.10$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2008 16.95$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2008 22.04$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2009 17.55$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2009 22.82$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2010 17.55$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2010 22.82$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2011 17.55$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2011 22.83$          

Beck J W Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2012 17.55$          

Brodie B T Heirs Taxes  lost to foreclosure 2012 22.83$          

Canon Financial  Services CORRECT VALUE 2012 16.77$          

Clearton, Janet R GOVERNMENT 2012 231.17$       

Hamlett Investments   CORRECT OWNERSHIP 2012 156.00$       

Mostly Handcrafted LLC CORRECT VALUE 2012 444.77$       

Nguyen Vu Linh CORRECT OWNERSHIP 2012 (12.74)$        

Reddy, Sarala D CORRECT OWNERSHIP 2012 12.74$          

Valdes  Bonifacio Rdr CORRECT OWNERSHIP 2012 (112.41)$      

Vasques, Santa Ibarra CORRECT OWNERSHIP 2012 (43.59)$        

Woodruff Trucking Inc CORRECT VALUE 2012 146.25$       

Total Releases/R & P Prop 1,255.40$    



CAF 13-13:  December 2012 Tax Releases & Refunds: January 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Registered Vehicle

Refunds

Woodall, Verna PRO‐RATE 2011 2.60$            

Adcock, Patricia Bowes PRO‐RATE 2012 4.41$            

Faulkner, Roy Hurst PRO‐RATE 2012 8.74$            

Faulkner, Roy Hurst PRO‐RATE 2012 12.05$          

Hargrove, Janice PRO‐RATE 2012 2.23$            

Kamel, Jamie Bramen PRO‐RATE 2012 14.72$          

Mata, Guadalupe Zuniga PRO‐RATE 2012 1.97$            

Total Refunds 46.72$          

Registered Vehicle

Releases

Faines, Mary Esther PRO‐RATE 2011 2.55$            

Hawley, Geraldine PRO‐RATE 2011 1.14$            

Williams, Reginal  Dar PRO‐RATE 2011 30.73$          

Woodard, Gerald Tobias PRO‐RATE 2011 0.73$            

Carroll, Doris  Terry TRANSFER OUT 2012 64.99$          

Henderson, Willie CORRECT SITUS 2012 35.74$          

Inscoe, Michael  Coy PRO‐RATE 2012 44.38$          

Jones, Shirley Marie PRO‐RATE 2012 6.38$            

Mills, Anthony Wayne PRO‐RATE 2012 42.65$          

NII, Athena Demetriade CORRECT VALUE 2012 14.30$          

Perry, Petrina Lavette CORRECT SITUS 2012 35.45$          

Richardson, Renardo PRO‐RATE 2012 35.25$          

White, Tracy Renee PRO‐RATE 2012 25.55$          

Wiliams, Daniel  Keith PRO‐RATE 2012 16.03$          

Williams, Linda Branch PRO‐RATE 2012 11.75$          

Wright, Lattiemore Ale CORRECT SITUS 2012 104.53$       

Total Reg Veh Releases  472.15$       

‐$              

Total Reg Veh Releases 

& Refunds 518.87$       

Total All Release & Refunds 1,774.27$    



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

5 February 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-21   

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-16 Authorizing a Contract with the 
McGill Associates to Perform Work Associated with Grant/Loan Applications and 
Engineering Work for Water and Sewer Projects as Noted in the Executive 
Summary. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 ● Approval of Resolution 13-16 Authorizing a Contract with the McGill Associates to 

Perform Work Associated with Grant/Loan Applications and Engineering Work for 
Water and Sewer Projects as Noted in the Executive Summary. 

 
Executive Summary 
 
It is the City’s desire to continue to plan and develop projects including funding to further 
strengthen the City’s water and sewer infrastructure needs.  McGill Associates is currently 
upgrading the CIP and the following projects have been identified which would enable the City 
to provide better water service, as well as continuing to replace existing sanitary sewer mains 
that have problems in regards to infiltration/inflow and other maintenance issues. 

 
1. Beckford Drive Water Main Loop - There is only one feed for the 

existing 8” main from Dabney Drive to the intersection of North Park 
Drive.  In the event of a break near Dabney Drive, a number of businesses 
would be without water, including a Dialysis Center, Operations Center, 
Shopping Centers, etc.  To provide for a looped system, a new 8” main 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:    ______ 
 
Council Meeting:  11 Feb 13 Work Session 
 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 2 of 9 

 

extending from just west of Franklin Place to North Park Drive should be 
considered.  It is approximately 3,000 linear feet at an estimated cost of 
$180,000. 

 
2. US 158 Business Water Main Project – This project was identified in 

the Hazen and Sawyer Hydraulic Analysis as a potential project to 
improve five flow redundancies and includes the extension of an 8” water 
main from Ruin Creek Road to Poplar Creek Road, a distance of 
approximately 10,600 linear feet at a cost of approximately $614,800.  
Construction of this main would provide a second feed to the system for 
Huntstone, Triangle North Industrial Park and Vance-Granville 
Community College in the event of line failure of the Regional Water 
System Main between Poplar Creek Road and Ruin Creek Road on US 
158 Bypass.  In addition, there are potential subdivisions that would be 
more accessible to city water as  it is understood that well problems may 
exist in that area. 

 
3.  Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main Replacement – The Sandy Creek 

Pump Station project is currently under design and the force main empties 
into this outfall.  The sewer main crossing under the CSX Railroad along 
Spring Street was completed in 2012 and there are additional sections 
along this main that are in need of rehabilitation/replacement.  There are 
several alternatives that have been identified and are being reviewed by 
the staff to determine the best alternative for the sewer collection system.  
The cost summary for each of these alternatives is attached along with a 
map outlining the projects.  This project was identified as a part of the 
Sandy Creek Flow Capacity Study prepared by O’Brien & Gere 
Engineers. 

 
 
Enclosures 
 

1. Resolution 13-16 
2. Cost Summary 
3. Project Maps 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 3 of 9 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   
 13-16 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF  
VARIOUS GRANT APPLICATIONS FOR WATER AND 

SEWER AND UTILIZING THE FIRM OF MCGILL 
ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure.  To provide reliable, dependable and 
environmentally compliant infrastructure systems; and KSO 8: Provide Financial 
Resourcing:  To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay 
necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, McGill Associates has been instrumental in assisting the City in applying for low 
interest loans and grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the existing Capital Improvement Plan and Water and Sewer Rate Study prepared 
by McGill Associates is in the process of being updated and revised; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are additional water and sewer projects that require locating of funding 

opportunities, including grants that may be available; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Henderson intends to apply for various grants for projects and as noted 

to utilize the services of McGill Associates, P.A. to prepare the grant application and, if 
awarded, perform the project work; and 

 
WHEREAS, specific grant/loan applications will be brought back to the City Council for review 

and consideration prior to the submission of any application, once it has been identified 
as well as the specific cost involved with McGill and Associates to perform this work; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the DWSR loan funds require projects to have ready to proceed status, therefore, 

requiring design work in conjunction with the submission of applications. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON, That James D. O’Geary, Mayor is authorized to enter into a contract 
with McGill Associates, P.A. for the purposes of preparing the grant applications and 
performing the preliminary engineering reports and/or designs as required by the 
grant/loan applications. 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 4 of 9 

 

The foregoing Resolution 13-16, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member *** and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was 
______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2013:  YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None. 

_____________________________
_ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 5 of 9 

 

  

 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 



 

CAF 13-21: 11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 



CM 13-11:  11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

7 February 2013  
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CM 13-11: Lamb and Main Street Demolition Project 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
On 10 December 2012, Council approved Ordinance 12-83, amending the Code Compliance 
Department’s demolition budget by adding $30,000. The additional funds are for the backlog of 
abandoned structures that are ready for demolition. There are 19 abandoned structures on the 
backlog list.  
 
As of 28 January 2013, Kearneco Grading (demolition contractor) and AB Control, Inc. 
(asbestos contractor) began the demolition of 6 of the 19 abandoned structures. The 6 structures 
are located in the North Henderson area of the City adjacent to the former Harriet Henderson 
Cotton Mill and the 2005 David Street CDBG project. 
 
The demolition project is not complete at this time; however, 5 of the 6 structures are down and 
contractors are in the process of hauling and bringing the properties into compliance. We expect 
the project to be completed by 15 February 2013, weather permitting.  A power point 
presentation illustrating the before photos of the properties will be presented Monday evening. 
The presentation will also highlight when structures were ordered to be demolished by City 
Council, as well as the budget for this project. 
 
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-83 

City Council Memo 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Feb. 13 Work Session 



CM 13-11:  11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 2 of 3 

 

O R D I N A N C E  12—83 
 
Council Member Rainey introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council 
Member Coffey and read: 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2012 – 2013 BUDGET 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #20 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 14 June 2012, adopted its 

FY 12-13 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget from time-to-time; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 12 Budget Amendment Revised

   ‐$                   ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$                    

‐$                   ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$                    

Total ‐$                   ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$                    

‐$                    

Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 12 Budget Amendment Revised

660:  Non-Departmental Reserve for Demolition 10-660-509853 30,000$            30,000$          (30,000)$           ‐$                    
423:  Code Compliance Contracted Services 10-423-504500 19,000$            19,000$          30,000$            49,000$             

‐$                   ‐$                    ‐$                       ‐$                    

Total 49,000$            49,000$             ‐$                       49,000$             

49,000$             
Variance -$                 

Ordinance 12-83

FUNDS: 10:  General Fund
FY12-13 Budget Amendment # 20

 

10:  General Fund Revenues

10:  General Fund Expenditures

Reference: Notes:
CAF # 12-148; Ord #12-83; BA # 20: 10 Dec 2012 The sanitation fee was increased by an additional $.50 at the time of initial budget 

adoption to generate an additional $30,000 to fund housing demolition.  This $30,000 
was held in abeyance in the non-departmental reserve account until the status of a 
possible Police Dept DOJ grant which would have assisted with the demolition of the 
back log of abandoned structures was determined.  The grant was not approved and, 
therefore, we are "transferring" the $30,000 from the Reserve for Demolition account 
to the Contracted Services account in the Code Compliance Dept where it will be 
used to assist with demolition of these abandoned structures.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CM 13-11:  11 February 2013 Work Session 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-83, upon motion of Council Member Rainey and second by Council 
Member Coffey and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes 
and was APPROVED on this the 10th day of December 2012:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, 
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: Kearney 
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. 676; CAF 12-148 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—83 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 10 December 2012 (Minute Book 42 p 676. This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. 517. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 13th day of December 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

4 February 2013 
 
 

TO: Mayor O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: Ray Griffin, City Manager 
 
RE: CM 13-10  

Re:  Retreat Discussion Points Continued 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Councilmembers expressed a desire to continue discussion of key points from the Retreat.  Two 
items that seemed to have a sense of urgency were economic development matters and use of the 
fund balance to balance the annual budget.   
 
Use of Fund Balance to Balance the Budget 
 
This was a key discussion item at the retreat and centered around concerns of continued and 
increasing reliance of using the undesignated fund balance to balance the budget.  While the 
City’s undesignated fund balance has grown, it has not grown to the extent it would have during 
the Recession years had no appropriations been made from it. 
 
There were many suggestions made by the three discussion groups on approaches that could be 
used to reduce and/or eliminate draw downs on the undesignated fund balance. (See pages 6 & 7 
of 23 Jan 13 Retreat Minutes)  Since I am in the midst of FY14 Budget development, any 
guidance from Council on the fund balance would be appreciated.   
 
Economic Development 
 
Without a doubt, economic development is the key to the City’s long-term sustainability.  Thus, 
it is not surprising it was the highest priority discussion item at the Retreat.  Many comments 
were offered as approaches to enhance current economic development efforts.  One item, One-
Stop Permitting, was assigned to a Performance Improvement Team (PIT CREW).  Several 
members expressed the desire to continue discussions on this item at work sessions. (See pages 3 
& 5 of 23 Jan 13 Retreat Minutes) 

 

City Council Memo 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 11 Feb. 13 Reg. Meeting 



  

                  

                Last Updated: 2/8/2013 2:28 PM 

Date Time Event Location 

Feb 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers  

Feb 5th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments 
City Council Chambers  

Feb 11th 9:30 AM KLRW Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference Room 

Feb 11th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers  

Feb 12th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers  

Feb 14th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission                  
Aycock Recreation Center 

Feb 21st  7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Feb 22nd 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911 Advisory 

Board Meeting 
E 911 Operations Center 

Feb 25th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow 
City Council Chambers  

Mar 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers  

Mar 5th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of 

Adjustments 
City Council Chambers 

Mar 11th 5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees 
H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library 

Board Room 

Mar 11th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Mar 12th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community Appearance 

Commission 
City Council Chambers 

Mar 14th 12:00 PM Henderson-Vance Park & Recreations 
Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

Mar 21st 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Mar 25th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session  to Follow 
City Council Chambers 

Mar 29th 
City Hall 
Closed 

Good Friday City Hall Closed 

Mar 29th 10:00 AM 
Henderson-Vance E911 Advisory 

Board Meeting 
E 911 Operations Center 

April 1st 3:30 PM Henderson Planning board City Council Chambers 

April 2nd 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of 
Adjustment 

City Council Chambers 

April 8th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

April 9th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community Appearance 

Commission 
City Council Chambers 

April 11th 12:00 PM Henderson-Vance Park & Recreations 
Commission 

Aycock Recreation Center 

Meetings and Events Calendar 
































	#4 RM 11 Feb 2013
	#2 Jan 23 Strategic Retreat
	#3 28 Jan Short meeting
	#4 28 Jan work session
	CAF 13-07  Ratify CRI  Grant Application PD Overtime Compensation R 13-05
	CAF 13-13  Tax rel-ref Decemberr 2012
	CAF 13-21 submission of various grant applications via McGill Assoc. R 13-16
	CM 13-11 Demolition Project
	CM 13-10-Retreat Discussion Points Continued 11 Feb 2013 Council Meeting
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	Jan 2013 HFD Report
	E 911 Report from 12-21-2012 thru 1-20-2013

